ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 30, 2013
3:05 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senat or Berta Gardner

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W/ son
Representative Harriet Drunmond
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senat or Bert Stedman
Senat or Charlie Huggins

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Al'l present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  THE STATE OF THE UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1- January 30, 2013



W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK GAMBLE, Presi dent

Uni versity of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a presentation on the state of the
Uni versity of Al aska.

DR. HERB (I LI SAURRI) SCHRCEDER, Vice Provost and Founder

Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Addressed the Alaska Native Science &
Engi neeri ng Program

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:05:13 PM

CHAIR LYNN GATTIS called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Education Standing Conmittees to order at 3:05 p.m
Present at the call to order were Representatives Drunmond,
Rei nbol d, Seaton, WIson and Chair Gattis. Senators present were
Gardner, Vice Chair Dunleavy and Chair Stevens.

Presentation: The State of the University of Al aska

3:05: 26 PM

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President, University of Anchorage, explained
that the presentation today would be a general discussion. He
said the wuniversity has already briefed both the Senate and
House Finance Committees regarding its budget.

3:07:09 PM

MR. GAMBLE stated that two-and-half years ago, as a new
presi dent he took a |ook at what the previous president was not
able to get to. He said that he took about six nmonths to visit
the canpuses and get to know people. He related that he was
involved with secondary and higher education in his previous
work with the Air Force.

He reported that he found the university to be an organization
simlar to the business world with a 2009 strategic plan that
needed updati ng.

3:09: 02 PM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -2- January 30, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS announced the arrival of Representative
Saddl er.

MR. GAMBLE expl ai ned that he soon discovered that the university
system needed to take an introspective look at itself and ask
the question if what it was doing was relevant to today and
exam ne the reasons for doing what it has been doing.

MR. GAMBLE said he had the opportunity to sit on the University
Task Force and listen to concerns about secondary and post-
secondary education and the link between the two. He cane to the
conclusion that the university had to get involved wth higher
education at a strategic level in the state. He said the band-
ai de approach would not work for |arge systematic changes.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX j oi ned the neeting.

3:11: 02 PM

MR. GAMBLE expl ai ned his appointnment of Dr. Terry MacTaggart and
the need for the university to change direction. The new plan
was nanmed the Strategic Direction Initiative (SDI). The goal of
SDI is that SDI is no |longer needed. He said that the university
is two-thirds through the SDI project. The second phase
consisted of a team that |ooked at all the current reviews that
had been done on the university system and included Rasnussen
Foundat i on f undi ng. There wer e over 80 write-ups,
recommendat i ons, and suggesti ons, including the MacTaggart
Rogers report on university staff. Over 80 I|istening sessions
were held throughout Alaska with students, faculty, and alumi
to collect feedback about what the university was doing right,
and w ong.

3:13:23 PM
He explained that after all the data was collected, a technica
word and subject search was run to distill subject material into

five major thenes. He said at that point SDI was a year-and-a-
half into the effort. He noted the transfer of credits was one
of the themes. He described sonme of the problens within the
t hree i ndependent units of the university due to fast growmh and
its inpacts.

3:15: 36 PM

He stated that the good news is, after a year-and-a-half, the
university has made  amazing  progress. The organi zation
understands the process and has worked it very well. There has

been cooperation, on the academ c side, of faculty across the
system by using the governance process. Another plus is the fact

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- January 30, 2013



that over the last four years, mmjor universities in the Lower
48 have taken huge budget cuts, which has forced them to try
innovated things in order to survive. He used the California
system as an exanple of a system that was forced to change and
beconme a better system

He said that Alaska' s university system has not had huge budget
cuts and is able to make changes on a programmatic basis wth
the cooperation of the legislature, using the best ideas from
col | eges down sout h.

He noted the inportance of deternmining Alaska's identity as a
university. He gave an exanple of an Eastern private college's
curriculum versus an engineering university's curriculumto show
the variety of college identities.

3:19: 24 PM

He said the wuniversity system is "Alaska's university for
Al aska's needs."” It is workforce devel opnent oriented, as well
as higher degree oriented. Alaska's students are interested in
staying in Alaska and working on what drives Alaska - the
econony and way of |ife. He pointed out that continuous

i nprovenent is the desire of any business or institution.

He related that phase three of SDI deals with the desired effect
of the university system such as better relationships with high
schools. In this phase, the five thenes are analyzed in terns of
the desired effect.

3:23:18 PM

He stated that on February 20, 2013, there will be a very large
meeting of university system |eadership to finish phase two of
SDI and begin phase three, which may be the hardest part of all.
He said that SDI could not be done w thout the cooperation of
the three chancellors. He praised the current team and said the
probability of success is very high.

CHAI R STEVENS voi ced appreciation for the presentation. He asked
when the MacTaggart Report woul d be published.

MR. GAMBLE answered that the MacTaggart Report was conpleted
prior to his arrival at the wuniversity. It covered only the
systemw de staff.

CHAIR STEVENS inquired if there would be a further working of
that report.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- January 30, 2013



MR. GAMBLE explained that Dr. MacTaggart 1is wrking as a
consultant on the university's behalf. Notes from the neetings
are available, but there will not be another report.

3:26:52 PM

CHAI R STEVENS noted that he had read the MacTaggart Report and
it was very interesting. He highlighted the Alaska Native
Sci ence Education Program (ANSEP), saying it works well.

MR. GAMBLE explained that his interest in the ANSEP program is
anal yzing what makes the program work and seeing if those
gualities can be expanded to other programs and to high schools
to keep students notivated. He spoke of the difficulties with
remedi ation prograns and the successes of ANSEP, which is
directed by Dr. Herb Schroeder.

3:29: 33 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about the graduation rate of the
ANSEP pr ogram

DR. HERB (ILISAURRI) SCHRCEDER, Founder and Executive Director,
Al aska Native Science & Engineering Program replied that it was
72 percent.

MR. GAMBLE clarified that it was 72 percent, conpared to about a
30 percent graduation rate of all students attenpting to get a
certificate or degree.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what it would take to expand ANSEP
to the public school system

MR. GAMBLE answered that Dr. Schroeder has validated ANSEF s
nmet hodol ogy in places other than Al aska. Those attributes appear
to be universal with all students. He stressed the inportance of
notivation within the classroom with the use of the integration
of up-to-date technology. He said the secret to expanding the
program is to get students interested when they are young, get
them involved, and let them see the excitenent of on-line
curricul um

3:34: 07 PM
SENATOR GARDNER questioned why renedi ation classes for the Merit
Schol arshi p Program were down.

MR. GAMBLE explained that it is a fairly new program wth

standards built into it. He said it is a three-tiered system and
the top tier is doing fine. The lowest tier is in jeopardy and

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- January 30, 2013



is participating in renmediation classes. He suggested the
program nmay need to be adjusted and one of the solutions is to
work in partnership with the high schools.

MR. GAMBLE pointed out that there is also the University of
Al aska (UA) Scholars Program for which the top 10 percent of any
high school are eligible. The success rate of that program
varies, also.

3:37: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD thanked M. Ganble for his factual
i nformati on and honesty, and for addressing problens brought to
him She voiced concerns about inplenenting technology wthout
paraneters. She asked if there is an outcone based study that
shows using technol ogy i nproves educati onal outcones.

MR. GAMBLE offered to find information about that subject. He
noted the rapid rate at which technology is finding its way into
the hands of students, universities, and colleges. He spoke of
the difficulty of funding technology upgrades and keeping up
wi th technol ogi cal cl assroons.

3:41: 39 PM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY suggested having Dr. Schroeder present his
nodel to the conmttee at a future date. He enphasized that the
right program will succeed with all students. He described the
di fference between "devel opnental " and "renedi ati on."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the higher education task
force and the two itens that were highlighted - individual
progress and conpletion rates. The individual required an
advi sor/advocate for any institution taking the performance
schol arship. He understood that the university has been adding
advi sor positions so that degree-seeking students would have
them avail able. He requested an update on that issue. He al so
spoke of renediation issues and wanted to know if the university
was i ntegrating suggestions nade in that area.

3:44: 27 PM
MR. GAMBLE answered that both topics are main thenes of SDI. He
noted the increase in funding of $1.1 nmillion for advisory

positions. He used University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA) as an
exanple of a test application called MAP-Wrks that was
specifically designed to help advisors with a heavy student | oad
know about the students they were advising. He said he was
inmpressed by its potential. He noted that, today, over 5,000
students are involved in MAP-Wrks. The freshnmen and sophonores

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- January 30, 2013



have first priority at UAA The university is beginning to see
benefits from the application, such as Early Alert, which helps
in retention of students.

3:47: 37 PM

MR. GAMBLE addressed Representative Seaton's second issue of
remedi ation. He said the university now uses "Accuplacer” as a
mandated placenent tool. They ran into the problem of "cut
scores" being different depending on the school. Recently, the
faculty aligned cut scores across the university system

He pointed out that accreditation is the blanket that falls over
all issues. It is inportant that the faculty is the one
responsi ble to make everything work. They are currently | ooking
at the standardization of certain general education requirenent
cour ses.

3:50: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the university offers renediation
course variability. He explained how di scouraged students get if
they are placed in the wong courses.

MR. GAMBLE replied that the university has not progressed that
far. The effort to include appropriate course renediation is
just beginning within SDI. The recognition of the problem has
been noted. He shared an exanple of a principal at a Kodiak high
school who told a story about a student who missed the cut-off
on "Accuplacer"” by one point. The student's math teacher said
the student was one of the best math students in his class,
could do coll ege work, and did not need renedi ati on.

He explained the current renediation process and classes
of fered. He suggested the process should be adapted to serve the
st udent s.

3:53:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what it would take to inplenment an
ANSEP-type program in the Anchorage public schools or in any
district.

MR. GAMBLE explained that one of the biggest problenms wth
bridging programs such as ANSEP is the need for small classes.
Such prograns are not as effective with large classes. He said
he believed the fundanental successful features of ANSEP could
be adapted to larger groups. He suggested building a program and
"costing it out" for thousands of students in districts across

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7- January 30, 2013



Al aska. He noted that prograns simlar to ANSEP have worked in
ot her places such as Hawaii and the Sout hwest.

3:55: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how "costing it out"” could be done.

MR. GAMBLE answered that it could be done internally and with
the help of a consultant.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about the transferability of credits. She
called it a "hot button issue.” She thought it was because the
public thinks of the university as one university with a bunch
of canpuses; however, accreditation is a separate subject and
there are really three different accredited universities, in
that sense. She recalled that the university's response to the
problem in the past has been "we're working on that." She asked
when the problemw || really be resol ved.

3:57:19 PM

MR. GAMBLE said he would know when the university does not have
any conplaints for a year. He noted that 97 percent of credits
did transfer, but the question is, "How did they transfer?" For
exanple, on-line processes sonetines did not work. He stressed
that the glitches have to be renoved, and in order to do so,
there nust be systemw de cooperation. He said that, sonetines,
it is student error and he gave an exanple. He suggested that
solutions to the problens are noving qui ckly al ong.

4:01: 01 PM
At ease

4:03: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke of a statewide initiative called the
$10,000 Degree. He asked if the wuniversity had |ooked at
streanl i ned prograns such as that.

MR. GAMBLE said no. He explained the idea behind that programis
to take as many college credits as possible during high school
take summer school courses, and plan a degree program carefully
in order to only spend $10,000 on tuition. He did say the
university is trying to offer nore college credits to high
school students.

4:06: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON comrended M. Ganble for working on the
probl em of transfer of credits. She said the first year she was

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- January 30, 2013



a legislator, thirteen years ago, transfer of credits was a
pr obl em

MR. GAMBLE replied that a professor from the university was
listening and would relate this information back to the academc
wor | d.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noted that problens with transfer of
credits from outside of Alaska lead to |ost opportunities for
enrol I ment and revenues. She asked if the university has an on-
line nodel such as the University of Mntana' s that shows which
credits will transfer.

4.:08:12 PM

MR. GAMBLE agreed that transfer of credits earned outside of
Alaska is a bigger problem He related that colleges in the
Lower 48 are formng coalitions in order to conpare basic
courses and avoid transfer problems and neet accreditation
standards. Students who transfer from mlitary colleges have
fewer problens because the Departnent of Defense has already
made arrangenents wth colleges, including the UA system
regardi ng the acceptance of credits.

4:10: 59 PM

CHAI R STEVENS said he appreciates the progress the university
has made on transferability, but noted that not all credits are
transferabl e.

SENATOR GARDNER shared a transfer experience in the California
system

MR. GAMBLE agreed that California was doing some cutting edge
things as a response to budget cuts. He believed that California
col | eges pre-approve courses throughout the system He
mai ntained that the Al aska network should be able to do the
same, from courses taken during high school, to a two-year
degree, to a main campus or comrunity canpus.

SENATOR GARDNER described it as "one university."
CHAI R STEVENS voi ced appreciation for the presentation.

MR. GAMBLE stated that he appreciated the commttee's interest
in the broader topics of education, not just budget issues.

4:14:01 PM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- January 30, 2013



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Stevens adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmmttee
at 4:14 p.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -10- January 30, 2013



